
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth 

Leol 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Mercher, 12 Chwefror 2014  

 

Amser: 

09:00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Sarah Beasley 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

029 2089 8032 

pwyllgor.CCLll@cymru.gov.uk  

 

 

Agenda 

 

 

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod (09.00-09.15) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2 Ymchwiliad i Lyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus yng Nghymru. Sesiwn 

Dystiolaeth 1 - Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (9:15-10:15) 

(Tudalennau 1 - 9)  
Dr Chris Llewelyn, Cyfarwyddwr Dysgu Gydol Oes, Hamdden a Gwybodaeth 
Peter Gomer, Cynghorydd Polisi, Hamdden, Diwylliant a Threftadaeth 
Richard Hughes, Cynghorydd CLlLC a Phennaeth dros dro Byw’n Iach, Cyngor 
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 

  

Egwyl (10:15-10:30) 

3 Ymchwiliad i Lyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus yng Nghymru. Sesiwn 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Dystiolaeth 2 - Sefydliad Siartredig y Gweithwyr Llyfrgell a Gwybodaeth 

Proffesiynol (10:30-11:30) (Tudalennau 10 - 16)  
Carol Edwards, Cadeirydd Sefydliad Siartredig y Gweithwyr Llyfrgell a Gwybodaeth 
Proffesiynol Cymru  
Mandy Powell, Swyddog Polisi, Sefydliad Siartredig y Gweithwyr Llyfrgell a 
Gwybodaeth Proffesiynol Cymru  
Jane Sellwood, yn cynrychioli Cymdeithas Prif Lyfrgellwyr Cymru 

  

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd 

o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: Eitem 5   

5 Bil Tai (Cymru): Trafod y materion allweddol (11:30-12:30)  

6 Papurau i’w nodi  (Tudalennau 17 - 42) 



Inquiry into Public
Libraries in Wales 

 17 January 2014 

 
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
CELG(4)-05-14 Paper 1  

Eitem 2

Tudalen 1



2

INTRODUCTION

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities 

in Wales, and the three national park authorities, the three fire and rescue authorities, 

are associate members.

2. It seeks to provide representation to local authorities within an emerging policy 

framework that satisfies the key priorities of our members and delivers a broad range 

of services that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they 

serve.

3. The WLGA is guided by a number of key principles, which underpin the work of the 

Association and have helped to shape the response to the inquiry on Public Libraries 

in Wales. The WLGA believes that decisions about services should be taken, as close 

to the point of delivery as possible and that the people and communities using those 

services should be as engaged as much as possible in their delivery.  It is also our 

belief that local services should be provided within a democratic framework of local 

accountability.

4. The WLGA recognises that it is the role of the Welsh Government to set the strategic 

framework and policy direction for services at a national level, and that it is the role of 

local government to deliver those services taking account of the local circumstances 

and pressures.  It is also recognised that services must be provided within a 

proportionate but effective regulatory framework to ensure that public resources are 

used appropriately and that services are delivered effectively and efficiently.

5. The WLGA has consistently argued for an un-hypothecated revenue support grant 

(RSG) as the best way of funding local government and any new responsibilities or 

additional burdens placed on local government should be fully costed and 

appropriately funded.

6. The WLGA recognises that some policy initiatives or strategies need to have funding 

attached to them for specific periods of time to make sure that they become 

embedded and are delivered as intended.  For this reason, the WLGA, by exception, 

supports the use of specific grants or the ring fencing of revenue funding for specified 

purposes on the understanding that funding will eventually return to the RSG. 

Tudalen 2



7. The WLGA welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Communities, Equality and 

Local Government Committee enquiry on Public Libraries in Wales. In drafting, the 

response the WLGA has worked in partnership with the Chief Culture and Leisure 

Officers Wales (CCLOW). 

8. Progress made by the Welsh Government towards achieving its Programme 

for Government commitments relating to libraries, and how sustainable any 

progress is in the current climate? 

8.1  As set out in the Libraries Inspire Strategy Public libraries are at the heart of their 

communities. The very reason for their existence is to inspire and assist people to 

make a positive difference to their lives. Libraries contribute to the social, educational, 

cultural and economic wellbeing of the people of Wales. 

8.2  Public libraries underpins and is coterminous with  the priorities set out in the Welsh 

Government’s “Programme for Government”, including Health, Supporting People, 

Poverty, Rural Communities and Education all of which Libraries have an impact within 

the communities they serve.

8.3 Traditionally libraries have undertaken and delivered an important role in advancing 

knowledge by providing access to information, supporting entrepreneurial activity, and 

inspiring life-long learning and reading for enjoyment. They foster social mobility and 

strengthen our communities, catering, as they do, for the needs of all parts of society 

from toddlers and their parents, to students (of all ages) and researchers, from local 

activists to small businesses, and from the frail and elderly and their carers to 

hobbyists and creators.

8.4 Significantly over the past decade Public libraries have taken on a more direct role in 

addressing poverty by tackling the digital divide, providing access to the internet with 

trained staff delivering advice and guidance, and helping people develop vital 

information and literacy skills. They have taken on the role of working with Job Centre 

Plus and more recently, they have become an important community resource in 

helping people claim Universal Benefit and enabling them to take advantage of a 

broad range of statutory and voluntary support available in their local community.

8.5 The Programme for Governments commitments to libraries is highlighted mainly by 

two performance indicators namely:

1. No. of visitors to heritage sites, local and national museums and libraries. 
2. No. of libraries refurbished via CyMAL Community Learning Libraries 

Programme.

Tudalen 3



4

References to both performance indicators highlights the number of people visiting 

public libraries through Wales showing an increase overall by 11% in the last 10 

years, combined with these statistics the capital funding allocation to public library 

projects is evident. Each time a Library has been refurbished or replaced there has 

been a significant increase in the number of users. 

The CyMAL capital funding stream and local authority matched funding has resulted in 

89 libraries being refurbished or replaced. This number does not include other 

Libraries that have been improved in each local authority with the use of their own 

capital funding or through other local initiatives and opportunities.

8.6 The Welsh Government Libraries Inspire Strategy describes how we will together 

maintain and develop new innovative services to meet the needs of the people of 

Wales over the next 5 years. To do this, we need to work with all types of libraries 

and their parent bodies, and other relevant organisations. 

The priorities of the strategy are to: 

! work together to review current models of service delivery in response to the 

current economic climate, and develop new innovative models of delivery 

! develop partnership working in procuring and improving access to resources, 

including new online services such as e-books 

! modernise public library buildings to meet the changing needs of their users 

! maximise the contribution of libraries in developing people’s skills to help 

everyone reach their potential, reduce inequality, and improve economic and 

social well-being 

! invest in developing the skills of library staff 

! implement a co-ordinated audience development programme across Wales to 

enrich the lives of individuals and communities 

! ensure the provision of a high quality service through initiatives such as the 

Welsh Public Library Standards. 

8.7 Strengthening regional collaboration is also highlighted and strong regional 

groupings of library services in all sectors (public, further and higher education, 

health, National Library) have developed over recent years with Welsh Government 

support. A good example is where Newport, Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouth 

and Torfaen have worked particularly closely over the last two years developing a 

single Results Based Accountability scorecard to measure the performance of library 

Tudalen 4



services across the five counties and identify collaborative actions to improve 

performance. The South East Wales region has undertaken a significant amount of 

work with the Reading Agency to produce a joint Reading Strategy delivered by each 

authority across the whole region.  In addition, the provisions of regional training to 

ensure library staff are up-to-date and have the relevant.

Skills to support our 21st century library user has been enabled and supported through 

the CyMAL grants. 

8.7 In the North Wales region the priority has been to develop a single Library 

management system, again with the support of CyMAL 

9. Extent to which the current legislative and policy frameworks are suitable 

to meet the challenges facing local authorities delivering library services in 

Wales?

9.1 The service is a statutory requirement as defined in the Public Libraries and Museums 

Act 1964, which states: 

‘It shall be the duty of every library authority to provide a comprehensive and efficient 

library service for all persons desiring to make use thereof’ 

A full copy of the Act maybe found at http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1964/75

The service has been underpinned and monitored by Welsh Government (CyMAL) 

through the Welsh Public Library Standards (WPLS). Although the standards 

themselves are not statutory, they assist the Welsh Government and local authorities 

to performance manage the library service and to set clear strategies and action plans 

to improve services. The Standards have evolved and local authorities are now in the 

last year of a three year 4th framework. 

9.2 The challenges that local authorities face will need be cognoscente of the broader 

context of the 1964 Act and reported via WPLS accordingly.

9.3 The WLGA is presently working closely with CyMAL and all local authorities to deliver a 

fit for purpose “Quality 5th framework for libraries “, it has been recognised by all 

partners that the previous frameworks were extremely effective in making a positive 

contribution in ensuring a more consistent and better quality of public library service 

across Wales and raising the standards of libraries. It has been recognised that under 

the emerging 5th framework that it is necessary to develop a more outcome based set 

of standards, demonstrating the wider contribution and value that public libraries 

Tudalen 5



6

make and allowing for greater reconfiguration along more innovative lines within local 

authorities.

9.4 In the present 4th framework there are 9 standards. The average number of standards 

achieved is 6. The best performing authorities in 2013 achieved 8 standards. In the 

standards review for 2012/13 (from the information supplied by local authorities up to 

31st March 2013) 6 authorities achieved a higher number of standards than the 

previous year, 4 achieved a lower number and 12 remained the same. Significantly, 

where standards were not achieved there were near misses. This is very significant in 

that library services along with other local authority services have already faced 

significant budget reductions, but due to good planning, collaboration in sharing best 

practice, innovative new ways of working and the support of CyMAL there has been 

no serious deterioration of the service to date. In fact, the review of the information 

supplied in 2013 pointed to the potential that more standards would be achieved. 

Possibly 8 authorities will achieve 8 or more and public opinion on the satisfaction 

with the service will remain high, however there is concern that the gap between 

higher achieving authorities and others will widen. However, in the context of the 

latest budget round for 2014/15 this statement may now prove to be overoptimistic.

10. How well prepared the Welsh Government and local authorities are to 

mitigate the impact of public sector cuts on library services?

10.1  The Welsh Government through CyMAL are working closely with the WLGA and local 

authorities to identify and share good practice and innovative new ways of delivering 

the public library service. Besides the clear identified threat, there is also an 

opportunity in these difficult financial times to create a library service that is a modern 

fit for purpose library service which will be sustainable, but which is also adaptive and 

ready to meet the increasingly rapid changes that are occurring in our society e.g. 

technological advances 

10.2  Assembly members will be aware that the Minister for Culture and Sport, John

Griffiths A.M. announced an expert review of the current and future plans by local 

authorities to deliver public library services in Wales. The review will also be tasked 

to consider the potential for new delivery models based on partnership working. The 

WLGA welcomes the review and is looking forward to taking a proactive role in 

enabling a clear strategy to be developed by the WG and local authorities to move 

forward with a high quality, professional, sustainable public library service that will 

continue to deliver for the needs of its communities. 

Tudalen 6



10.3  Local authorities have been and are continuing to look at a wide range of options to 

deliver new sustainable models of library provision. There are many innovative new 

developments that are either in place or being put into place, including shared 

space, community managed and regional library management system. There has 

also been a root and branch investigation by local authorities on the use made of 

buildings and the historic nature of provision, which in some cases has been 

identified, as not fit for purpose and not viable. In many cases, the consultation 

period has not yet been completed and final decisions made. 

10.4  It should also be noted that library services have continually changed to meet the 

needs of a developing service, e.g. the introduction of IT, the role within job centre 

plus, Universal credit, shared space and direct delivery of additional local authority 

customer services etc which has also led to a need to review the pattern of service 

delivery beyond just that of the financial restraints. Stronger community participation 

and widening the appeal are essential for the library services to prosper. In order to 

meet the efficiency, some service provision will inevitably be rationalised.

10.5  The following options are all under consideration as a way of meeting both the 

financial challenges and identified community needs. These are not exhaustive but 

do provide the mainframe potentially for the future. 

! Greater collaboration with partners, e.g. local authorities, communities, further 

education, higher education. 

! Community managed facilities, volunteers. 

! Community councils, area partnerships. 

! Relocation of libraries. E.g. shared facilities with customer first, leisure centres, 

community buildings. 

! Deposit collections. 

! Greater use of internet ordering, delivery and return. 

! Mobile library service, increased/removed where appropriate 

! Enhanced housebound service 

! Externalising the service potentially with Leisure services and other cultural 

services

10.6  In order to assist the Minister for Culture and Sport, Welsh Government and local 

authorities through the review process and the difficult times we are facing the 

WLGA in partnership with CyMAL, and CCLOW have organised a seminar for the 13th

February 2013 at the newly built Library and Community service point in Caerphilly 

County Borough. The Minister for Sport and Culture, with the WLGA spokesperson 

Tudalen 7



8

for Heritage and Culture will be the keynote speakers along with other speakers from 

CyMAL and local authorities to share some of the innovative work being undertaken 

in Wales with local authority Cabinet members and senior officers and to share 

sustainable models on the potential way forward. 

The Communities Equality and Local Government Committee is welcome on block to 

the Public Libraries Seminar on the 13th February. 

For further information please contact: 

peter.gomer@wlga.gov.uk

Welsh Local Government Association 
Local Government House 
Drake walk 
Cardiff
CF10 4LG 

Tel: 029 2046 8600 

Tudalen 8



Tudalen 9



1 

 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

CELG(4)-05-14 Paper 2 

 

 

National Assembly for Wales Inquiry into Public Libraries in Wales 

Submission from the Chartered Institute of Library and Information Professionals, 
Wales (CILIP Cymru Wales) 

February 2014 

Introduction 

CILIP: The Chartered Institute of Library and Information Professionals is the leading 
professional body for librarians, information specialists and knowledge managers. CILIP’s 
vision is a fair and economically prosperous society underpinned by literacy, access to 
information and the transfer of knowledge. CILIP Cymru Wales is the national office for 
CILIP in Wales and has its own governing Committee. 

CILIP is a registered charity, no. 313014.  www.cilip.org.uk 

I. Progress made by the Welsh Government towards achieving its Programme for 
Government commitments relating to libraries, and how sustainable any progress 
is in the current climate. 
 
Support from the Welsh Government is vital to sustaining an excellent public 
library service in Wales and avoiding the long term consequences for literacy and 
employability that risk being the result of the de-valuing of public library services 
elsewhere in the UK. 
 

1.1 CILIP Cymru Wales welcomes the support and guidance given by the Welsh 
Government on the delivery and development of public libraries in Wales through its 
Programme for Government commitments. These are set out in CyMAL’s Libraries 
Inspire programme, which  “ ...will help deliver priorities outlined in the Welsh 
Government’s Programme for Government such as literacy and other skills, accessible 
digital opportunities, promoting our culture and helping to reduce inequalities”.  

 
Public Libraries are important community hubs at the centre of most Welsh communities 
and help address all ten areas identified in the Programme for Government, including 
promoting growth and tackling poverty which the First Minister has previously described 
as his top priority.1 

1.2 We believe the performance measurement frameworks, the Welsh Public Library 
Standards have helped public libraries in Wales improve and develop. We believe that a 
supportive government & CyMAL and the commitment of frontline staff have helped the 
sector in not seeing as heavy a decline in issues and visits as elsewhere in the UK.  
Over 14 million people visit public libraries in Wales each year.2 The investment in library 
refurbishments through CyMAL funding grants has contributed to these positive visitor 
numbers. In the last 10 years 89 libraries out of a total of 280 in Wales have benefited 
from remodelling as a result of Community Learning and Libraries funding. 

 

 

Eitem 3

Tudalen 10



2 

 

1.3 Our concerns for the continuation of this positive progress relate to the budget reductions 
faced by local authorities to core funding and the Welsh Local Government Association 
announcement in October 2013 of reductions of £175m in 2014/15 with a further £65m in 
2015/16.3 

 
 

 

Recommendations:  

• The Welsh Government, via the Minister for Culture and Sport and CyMAL, working with 
organisations such as the Society of Chief Librarians, Wales, Welsh Local Government 
Agency and CILIP Cymru Wales continue to monitor the situation in Wales. 

• That the situation be kept under constant review as the impact of the cuts start to take 
shape and for the Welsh Government to collect and publish this information. See also 
recommendations for question 3.  

 

2. Extent to which the current legislative and policy frameworks are suitable to meet 
the challenges facing local authorities delivering library services in Wales. 
 

Public libraries are a statutory service and local authorities will be challenged in 
how to meet their duties in a time of constraint. Proactive use of standards and 
frameworks will help in this challenge.  

 
1.2 The Welsh Public Library Standards (WPLS) provide a framework for each local 

authority to deliver a comprehensive and efficient library service. The standards do not 
proscribe how authorities should provide a library service. 

 
 

1.3 The Public Libraries and Museums Act 19644 makes the provision of library services 
statutory. Section 1 of the act allows for the collection of information or inspection of a 
public library authority and Section 10 for an inquiry where an authority may be in default 
of its obligations and an order specifying improvements required following an enquiry. 
Ultimately, the Minister for Culture and Sport has powers to take over the running of 
services in Wales. 

 
1.4 CILIP Cymru Wales welcomes the Minister’s recent written statement on public libraries 

in which he reminded local authorities of the legal requirement to provide a public library 
service. 

“I expect local authorities to be mindful of their statutory responsibilities to provide 
‘comprehensive and efficient’ library services in setting their budgets going forward”.5 

 
Recommendations:  
 

• The Welsh Government, via the Minister for Culture and Sport and CyMAL ensure the 
new set of Welsh Public Library Standards, currently in development, continue to be 
inspirational and developmental and do not only reflect the situation as it is now. 

• The Minister and his team continue to monitor the impact of any changes in service 
provision and are prepared to use the 1964 Public Libraries and Museums Act to ensure 
local authorities provide a comprehensive and efficient library service.  

Tudalen 11



3 

 

 

 

 

 

3. How well-prepared the Welsh Government and local authorities are to mitigate 
the impact of public sector cuts on library services. 

 
Collaboration both within the library and information sector and across local 
authority services is key to ensuring future resilience. Libraries should not bear 
disproportionate levels of cuts.  

 
3.1 As with other local government services libraries were also included in the Simpson 

Review (“Local, Regional, National: What Services are Best Delivered Where?”)6 and 
the resulting Compact for Change between the Welsh Government and Welsh local 
government agreed in December 20117.  

  This committed the Welsh Government and Local Government to review existing 
collaborative arrangements in library services and agree an implementation plan for 
further collaborative arrangements by November 2012. There are a number of reasons 
to promote collaboration but undoubtedly one is to secure savings by more efficient and 
effective working. It is also about increasing the capacity and resilience in the sector to 
meet the challenges ahead and respond creatively to the opportunities. 

3.2 One of our great strengths in Wales is that library planning is across all sectors, 
including the National Library of Wales, academic and school libraries and those in other 
sectors. Therefore the National Library of Wales is taking a strong lead in the 
development of a national online reference service and the development of important 
heritage online resources such as “The People’s Collection Wales”8.  

 
3.4 The National Information Literacy Framework9 will harness resources and expertise in 

all types of libraries to enable all Welsh people to live their lives to the full by engaging 
effectively with the information society.  Such developments would only be possible by 
collaboration across the library sectors and the important role of CyMAL in helping to 
cement these partnerships must be acknowledged. 

 
3.5 Although the partnership and collaborative working achieved is impressive, and leads 

the UK, it needs to be accelerated and taken forward with even greater determination. 
The development of a common Library Management System across Welsh public 
libraries will unlock the possibility of greater administrative integration and sharing of 
expertise and management resources as envisaged in the Simpson report.  

 
3.6 We acknowledge that all of the new developments, economies of scale and other 

initiatives may still not be enough to mitigate the depth of the impact of the budgets 
savings that will be required.   CILIP Cymru Wales concern is that libraries should not be 
expected to bear disproportionate cuts. The average spend on public libraries in Wales 
is just 0.89% of local authority expenditure.10 

 
3.7 CILIP has already welcomed the Minister’s proposal (Minister’s Written Statement 3 

December 2013) for a review of current and future plans by local authorities to deliver 
public library services, planned to report in the Spring11. We hope that this will begin an 
informed debate as to what will be needed to ensure a sustainable public library service 

Tudalen 12



4 

 

in Wales. We believe the Welsh Government should lead this debate and broker the 
way forward.  CILIP Cymru would wish to be participants in that debate.  

 
 

 

Recommendations:  

• The Welsh Government to consult on outcomes of report of the Expert Working Party on 
current and future plans of local authorities to deliver public library services with view to 
establishing a credible way forward through the Compact for Change.   

• The Minister to publish an annual report on the state of public libraries as a way of 
ensuring that libraries are kept to the forefront of the Government’s agenda (Section 17 
of 1964 Act requires him to produce an Annual report on the exercise of his functions 
under the Act). 

4. Options for improving the financial sustainability of library services, including 
alternative models of provision. 

 
Innovative options for improving services are currently under investigation and 
should be optimised.  Services need to be professionally led and staffed to ensure 
that they deliver the benefit of these for local communities. 
 

4.1 There are service reviews in progress both locally and regionally, and a number of pilot 
schemes funded by CyMAL that are investigating new ways to deliver library and 
information services to communities, such as plans to automatically give school children 
membership of the library, all Wales e-magazine subscriptions, and a shared Library 
Management System for Wales.  The continued ability of CyMAL to fund and support 
these projects is of vital importance to the development of library services in Wales. 

 
4.2  Internet access is free in Welsh public libraries. As local authorities look for new ways to 

bridge the saving gap, charges should not be introduced for information services that 
restrict access for those most in need. We believe that free access to information 
contributes to a knowledgeable and economically active society and public libraries are 
well placed to help citizens develop vital information skills. 1 in 5 adults in the UK do not 
have basic online skills, but 90% of all jobs will require ICT skills by 201512, public 
libraries are helping to combat the digital divide. 

 
4.3 Both CILIP Cymru Wales and The Society of Chief Librarians, Wales are clear that 

library and information services rely on the skills of trained professionals to shape and 
deliver services fit for their communities.  Volunteers can provide support to enhance a 
service, but they do not replace the need for trained professionals.  

 
CILIP Cymru Wales does not support use of volunteers as a replacement for paid, 
professional staff.13 

Recommendation: 

• That the Welsh Government continues to support the CyMAL grants programme to fund 
pilot projects that investigate potential developments in the provision of library services. 

5 The contemporary and community role of public libraries in Wales. 
 

Tudalen 13



5 

 

Public libraries should have a crucial role in connecting people in a digital world 
and ensuring universal access to literacy, learning and information.  That role is 
needed more than ever today as part of ensuring that the divide between the rich 
and poor in society does not increase and we build strong communities.  
 
 

5.1  Public libraries provide opportunities for learning and literacy development, access to 
information and knowledge and support for families and disadvantaged communities.  
Libraries must be at the forefront of digital innovation in the creation and delivery of 
services, mobile communications and e-content, becoming an integral part of a 
networked society, promoting the information literacy and digital skills necessary for 
participation.  Libraries help to create literate and articulate individuals and communities 
that can better support themselves.   

 
5.2 Professional library staff shape services to the needs of local communities, engage them 

effectively in service development, and ensure safe and impartial access to services.  
They are trained in these skills and work to a unique professional code of practice and 
ethical values. They bring expertise in reading and learning, acting as guides to the mass 
of data and online information that is increasingly used for decision making in daily life.   
 

5.3 Public libraries are a key delivery mechanism for local solutions to the real difficulties 
faced by disadvantaged communities in partnership with other local providers. By helping 
to bridge the ‘digital divide’ libraries can support people to access and understand the 
wealth of resources available in the Information Age.  In partnership with other agencies 
and services libraries can combat poverty and disadvantage, support social mobility and 
fairness, and enable employability and economic self-sufficiency.  Most library services 
have diverse established partnerships with providers of education and adult learning, 
health care, neighbourhood and policing services, youth intervention, community groups 
and business. 

 
5.4 Skilled and knowledgeable staff are vital to ensure that libraries engage effectively with 

users and make a difference to the lives of individuals and the communities they are 
part of. Evidence from a forthcoming CILIP UK survey of public library staff shows real 
concern that cutbacks will not allow them to provide that support and that their role will 
be devalued.  CILIP brings quality accreditation for the skills and knowledge of library 
staff through the Professional Knowledge & Skills Base, our key skills map for the 
profession and its framework of professional registration.14 

 
We will be undertaking a major workforce study across all library and information sectors 
in the UK during 2014 which will identify how the skills and expertise of library staff has 
developed and continues to change.  
CILIP is working closely with the Welsh Government Library Service in developing a 
professional development framework for library and information staff and we would want 
to do similar for public library staff in partnership with appropriate bodies. 

5.5. The Society of Chief Librarians has published a number of documents that demonstrate 
the wealth of knowledge and skills that library services offer and show how public 
libraries help address the Programme for Government: ‘Brighter, Bolder, Better’ (2009), 
‘Addressing the Digital Divide’ (2010), The Importance of Reading (2011), Public 
Libraries: Health, Wellbeing and Social Benefits, ‘Public Libraries: Reducing Child 
Poverty’ (2013). 15 

Recommendations: 

Tudalen 14



6 

 

• Government should review the role of libraries under each area of its Programme for 
Government. This should be fed into future planning and collaboration with local 
authorities 

• CyMAL should explore with CILIP possibilities of producing a library staff development 
plan as part of its workforce development plan. 

Contacts for CILIP Cymru Wales: 

Mandy Powell, CILIP Policy Officer, Wales mandy.powell@cilip.org.uk 

Guy Daines, Head of Policy, CILIP             guy.daines@cilip.org.uk  

References 

                                                           
1
 Libraries Inspire: the strategic development framework for Welsh libraries 2012-16. CyMAL, 2011 

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/cultureandsport/museumsarchiveslibraries/cymal/libraries/librariesinspire/?lang=e

n 

  
2
 Over 14 Million visits  http://wales.gov.uk/newsroom/cultureandsport/2013/130404libraries/?lang=en 

3
 £175m down and counting, councils say “local services will be cut”. WLGA press release, 8 October 2013. 

http://www.wlga.gov.uk/newslisting/175m-down-and-counting/ 

 
4
 Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964. http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1964/75 

 
5
 Written Statement – Public Libraries in Wales. 

http://wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2013/8265614/?lang=en  

 
6
 Local, regional, national: what services are best delivered where? [Simpson report]. Welsh Government, 

2011. http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/lnrdelivery/?lang=en 

 
7
 Compact for change between the Welsh Government and welsh local government, welsh Government, 2011. 

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/publicationsevents/publications/compact/?lang=en 

 
8
 Peoples Collection Wales. See http://www.peoplescollectionwales.co.uk/ 

 
9
 Information Literacy Framework for Wales. Welsh Information Literacy Project, 2011. 

http://welshlibraries.org/skills/information-literacy/useful-documents-and-links/ 

 
10

 % of local authority expenditure, Welsh Average 0.89% 

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/cultureandsport/museumsarchiveslibraries/cymal/libraries/wpls/annual-reports-

12-13/?lang=en 

11
 CILIP welcomes Welsh Minister’s statement on the value of public libraries. CILIP press release, 3 December 

2013. http://www.cilip.org.uk/cilip-cymru-wales/news/cilip-welcomes-welsh-minister-s-statement-value-

public-libraries-0 

 
12

 Go On UK http://www.go-on.co.uk/challenge/uk-snapshot  

 
13

 CILIP use of volunteers policy.  http://www.cilip.org.uk/cilip/advocacy-awards-and-projects/advocacy-and-

campaigns/public-libraries/policy-statements/use 

 
14

 Professional Knowledge and Skills Base. CILIP, 2012. http://www.cilip.org.uk/cilip/jobs-and-

careers/professional-knowledge-and-skills-base 

 

Tudalen 15



7 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
15

 Society of Chief Librarians, Wales  http://www.goscl.com/scl-wales/  

Tudalen 16



Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol 
CELG(4)-05-14 Papur 4

Eitem 6

Tudalen 17



Tudalen 18



Tudalen 19



Tudalen 20



Tudalen 21



Tudalen 22



Tudalen 23



Tudalen 24



Tudalen 25



Tudalen 26



Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28



Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30



Tudalen 31



Tudalen 32



Tudalen 33



Tudalen 34



Tudalen 35



Tudalen 36



Tudalen 37



Tudalen 38



Tudalen 39



Tudalen 40



Tudalen 41



Tudalen 42


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i Lyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus yng Nghymru. Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 1 - Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru
	3 Ymchwiliad i Lyfrgelloedd Cyhoeddus yng Nghymru. Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 2 - Sefydliad Siartredig y Gweithwyr Llyfrgell a Gwybodaeth Proffesiynol
	6 Papurau i™w nodi

